
1 
 

Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
By Zoom 
Meeting Date 
Tuesday, 23 April 2024 
Meeting Time 
10.00 am 

For further information please contact 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Katharine Flanagan-Jones 
katharine-maria.flanagan-
jones@powys.gov.uk 
 

 17/04/2024 

 
Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod. Rhowch wybod 
pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod gwaith cyn y 
cyfarfod.  

The use of Welsh by participants is welcomed. If you wish to use Welsh please 
inform us by noon, two working days before the meeting 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.  APOLOGIES  
 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST  
 
To receive any disclosures of interest by Members relating to items to be considered 
at the meeting. 
 
  

3.  DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  
 
To receive disclosures of prohibited party whips which a Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting in accordance with Section 78(3) of the Local Government 
Measure 2011. 
 
(NB: Members are reminded that under Section 78 Members having been given a 
prohibited party whip cannot vote on a matter before the Committee.) 
 
 
 
  

Public Document Pack



4.  MINUTES  
 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 
20th March 2024 as a correct record. 
(Pages 3 - 12) 
  

5.  SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES FOR LEARNING STRATEGIC OUTLINE 
PROGRAMME  

 
To receive and consider the Sustainable Communities for Learning Strategic Outline 
Programme. 
(Pages 13 - 62) 
  
Committee Reflection 

Following the close of the meeting the Committee is asked to spend 5 to 
10 minutes reflecting on today's meeting. 

 

 

 
 



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LEARNING AND SKILLS SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE HELD BY ZOOM ON WEDNESDAY, 20 MARCH 2024 

 
Present: 
County Councillor L Roberts Vice Chair 
County Councillors: D Bebb, AW Davies, B Davies, D Meredith, G Morgan, S 
McNicholas, G Preston & C Robinson 
Co-opted Member: K Chedgzoy, S Davies, M Evitts. 
 
Cabinet portfolio Holders in Attendance:  
County Councillors: 
P Roberts, Cabinet Member for a Learning Powys 
D Selby, Cabinet Member for a more Prosperous Powys 
 
Officers: Lynette Lovell Dir. of Education and Children’s Services, Georgie 
Bevan, Head of Schools Service, Marianne Evans Service Manager for Schools 
Transformation. 

 
1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from  
County Councillor - Gwynfor Thomas, as on other Council business. 
  

 
2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest from Members relating to items for 
consideration on the agenda. 
 

 
3.  DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  

 
The Committee did not receive any disclosures of prohibited party whips which a 
Member has been given in relation to the meeting in accordance with Section 
78(3) of the Local Government Measure 2011. 

 
 

4.  MINUTES  
 

Documents Considered: 
                     Minutes of the 15th January 2024 & 9th February 2024 

  
Minutes agreed by Committee members present as a true and accurate 
reflection of the meetings and ratified accordingly by the Chair. 
  
Committee also noted the minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting of 
the 28th February 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

4



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

5.  JOINT LEISURE WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET 
REPORT  

 
Background 
Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Working Group Cllr Gareth E Jones thanked those 
Members of Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee who were part of and 
assisted in the Working Group. 
An outcome report was attached within the agenda for the Scrutiny Committee 
for comment, whilst it was noted the paper had been presented to Cabinet earlier 
this week. 
  
Cllr D Selby thanked the Working Group for the thorough, well researched and 
fair approach, and believed that this process had assisted in collating the 
necessary data to be considered in the review. 
  
Cllr P Roberts echoed sentiments by Cllr Selby and added that the Working 
Group had given the Cabinet the confidence that the data is sound and has been 
thoroughly reviewed. 
  
Points raised by the Panel: 

  
Responses received from Officers or 

Cabinet Members. 
When was the Leisure Review 
expected to conclude, which would 
enable schools to plan for the future. 

The answer is quite complex as the 
Review falls under the Sustainable 
Powys work. Small pieces of 
outstanding work will continue, 
however there is not a final date as 
other decisions from Sustainable 
Powys work may affect the work of the 
Leisure Review.  

There were budget savings predicated 
on the Leisure Review outcomes as 
well as the Bro Hyddgen development, 
assurance was requested that as work 
progresses, opportunities would not be 
missed through the lack of thorough 
and quick decisions being made. 

Another complication was the savings 
that the Schools Service were making 
on the particular element of the 
contract. Collation of data was being 
progressed to allow for decisions to be 
made, whilst not officially part of the 
Leisure Review, it would affect the 
future of the service moving forward. 

In terms of transportation to and from 
leisure centres for swimming, had this 
been reflected in the School Funding 
Formula. 

No, not at all. 

  A recommendation from the Joint 
Scrutiny Working Group was for a 
figure to be identified in relation to 
transport costs incurred. 

  In Wales it is not compulsory that 
children learn to swim, as an LA it was 
felt this was an essential life skill. We 
have tried to determine the amount of 
swimming time with the Leisure team, 
but the autonomy sits with each 
individual school for planning the 

Page 4



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

curriculum and the travel to and from 
centres. 

  
  
  

 
 

6.  COMMITTEE DISCUSSION IN RELATION TO SCHOOL VISITS AND DEEP 
DIVE WORK  

 
Points raised by the Panel: 

  
Responses received from Officers 

or Cabinet Members. 
PRU working group or a deep dive 
given the significant savings within the 
budget, and to understand the impact 
on the provision provided. How the 
potential plan of working closer with 
schools and on schools sites would 
work in practice and it was important to 
have a clear plan before changes were 
implemented. 

  

Visits to schools that have provided 
Trochi immersion education, either 
through the Trochi Working Group with 
invite extended to other Committee 
Members. 

Officers were happy to support in 
arranging this as felt would be 
beneficial for the working group to see 
first-hand the Trochi provision, and 
report findings back to the Scrutiny 
Committee. 

There have been some new build all-
thru school across the border in 
Carmarthenshire, would be beneficial 
to discuss pro’s and cons of the design, 
to ensure similar issues or problems 
were not made and give assurance to 
the well-being and safety of our 
learners. 
The Committee need to have 
assurance and understand the impact 
that tight budgets had on the options 
that were available through the 
Transformation programme, a separate 
session or deep dive on this would be 
appreciated. 

It would possibly be helpful for 
Members to see conditions of some of 
our School estate buildings, to 
compare the learning environments to 
our new builds. The additional 
challenge and pressure this presents 
not only to teaching staff but to those 
who were managing budgets in the 
current financial situation, alongside 
the transformation agenda.   
The Offer post 14 moving forward 
could have potential impact on funding 
whilst also need to ensure that the 
service and curriculum was meeting 
demand of the learner. 

Aware Members of the group had in 
previous meeting expressed concern 
on Early Years provision, especially 
with links to the ALNET Act.  
  
  
  

A National agenda item is the 
Community Schoos agenda, what a 
Community School looks like and what 
role does it play. The Schools Services 
has used grant funding to employ 
Family Liaison Officers to support our 
Community Schoos, agenda which 
forma part of the WH National Review, 
with Powys being used as a case 
study. The Committee may wish to 

Page 5



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

contrast and compare our Community 
and non-Community schools provision. 

  Committee may also like to have a 
working group on the Multi Site 
schools, the problems and challenges 
they had faced over the 4-6years they 
have been operating, especially if the 
Council were to be considering 
establishing more. 

It has been a year since we had a very 
positive presentation in respect of the 
Music plan in Powys, to boost the 
instrumental music played in schools, 
was there any further update available. 

Lynsey MCCrohan, the Strategic Lead 
for Music and Expressive Arts would 
be happy to come back to Scrutiny 
Committee and inform of the significant 
progress made through presentations 
to WG and other LA’s. 

Need to look at the current funding 
formula in particular across ALN 
students. 
There still remain major issues with the 
funding formula which cannot be left 
drift and needs to be looked at to 
ensure it is fair across the board 

The school funding formula has 
recently been reviewed and brought to 
Scrutiny and Cabinet, the changes in 
direct response to the new ALNET Act 
and included provision for Deprivation, 
meaning that less funding remained 
centrally. 

  ALPS data analysis could be shared 
via a Committee development session. 

  
 

 
7.  PROGRESSION AND LEARNING  

 
Points raised by the Panel: 

  
Responses received from Officers or 

Cabinet Members. 
Teaching was a main theme under 
the recommendations. 

Agreed it was a significant area, 13 out 
of the 27 recommendations across all of 
our schools highlighted teaching as 
requiring improvement. For this reason, 
the service focussed on teaching for the 
Autumn term visits, the quality of 
teaching at those schools and input 
support where required. For most 
schools they were able to evidence that 
the quality of teaching was good. Where 
inconsistencies in teaching were 
identified, support processes had been 
input. SIA support was deployed to 
schools where analysis had not been 
thoroughly undertaken. The Service is 
now in a much stronger position to 
understand the quality of teaching, 
following the recommendations received 
from Estyn last year, which should have 
a knock-on effect on the standards. 

Has the focus of Estyn inspections No, there was not a National issue that 
Page 6



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

changed over the last year in 
comparison to previous years from 
results to teaching.  

teaching came out as inconsistent, 
which was mainly around the self-
evaluation process which wasn’t picked 
up in Powys as being an area of 
significance. 

The point has been made that if 
teaching was deemed satisfactory, 
the same would be reflected in 
standards. There were 5 inspection 
areas, would they all have the same 
weighting, even for those peripheral 
elements i.e., wellbeing that were not 
the core like teaching. Was there any 
suggestion that the peripheral 
elements had sufficient staffing, yet 
teaching did not. 

Estyn have all areas of an inspection as 
equal. Since Covid Schools have placed 
an emphasis on wellbeing, which has to 
remain so that the children can learn in 
that environment. Would a greater 
emphasis on the wellbeing of the child 
mean that teaching was not in place 
that we would want it to be. We have 
evidence of good teaching practice 
within the schools of Powys; however 
we would have to go back and examine 
reasons why this has happened.  
An issue raised by Estyn was around 
whether there was enough challenge to 
push learners on, and this has been 
challenged by the Service to schools. 

In terms of Leadership, was this in 
relation to schools without permanent 
Leadership staff in place. 

This point was not specifically about 
acting or new leadership it was more in 
terms of the quality of leadership. What 
was the impact inside the school, was 
the school and strength of the school 
understood, if area of improvement 
were required were these realistic and 
in place. 
Estyn picked up that in some cases 
school had not been specific enough 
and at times were over generous in their 
judgements. 

The literacy and numeracy point 
score of Powys was closer to the 
Wales average compared to that of 
the eFSM LA average and the all-
Wales eFSM score, was there a 
reason for this greater disparity. 

There are quite marginal differences in 
the of scheme of things, we must be 
aware that Powys’ eFSM pupils 
compared to all Wales is lower  

If undertake benchmarking of our 
schools with similar eFSM etc., is the 
same benchmarking completed for 
similar LA’s. 
  

This could be something pulled out of 
the data, which is available in the public 
domain and available on:  
www.mylocalschool.gov.uk 
Whilst we were not provided with the 
data on other LA’s directly this site 
would give the opportunity to look at 
other schools. 
Schools were given, to use as a 
comparison tool, the All-Wales Schools 
Data Pack, within which they are placed 
into a family of similar schools, with a 
family average and could therefore 

Page 7

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mylocalschool.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ccressida.murphy%40powys.gov.uk%7C67e327b5c2e14fa2323d08dc58c0731a%7Cc01d9ee10eb0475499ae03ae8a732b50%7C0%7C0%7C638482830824359045%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VY6DVkENMtM5A%2Bp3t00gGPyXj6TWqm%2BR%2FsmaGAu4l1w%3D&reserved=0


Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

benchmark to similar schools in similar 
contexts.  

Did the service compare the 
“families” and compile the data, 
rather than a catch all of the all-
Wales average.  

The Service only has a high-level 
overview as per 3.13. On average the 
Capped 9 scores in Powys were 3.9 
points behind similar schools, which 
equates to approximately half a grade 
across all 9 of the qualifications. 

How would Powys address this gap 
and what were the projected 
timescales. 

This forms part of the Secondary 
Strategy with a strong focus on 
improving teaching and learning in 
schools and on improving the curriculum 
offer and the ways in which schools can 
support learner progress the best way 
they can and ultimately aspire to be in 
line with similar schools. 
In terms of timescales the work was 
ongoing within the Secondary Strategy, 
spanning a minimum of 3 years, during 
which we would expect to see 
significant improvements. 
  
SIAs were aware of the family data for 
the schools, and work through the data 
with the school leaders. The Schools 
Service did not collate nor analyse the 
data internally. One of the themes in 
line with this report, was to prioritise 
self-evaluation, for schools to be able to 
accurately reflect and there had been 
significant improvements made in the 
evaluation of teaching and learning. 
Data is very different now and it would 
possibly be very beneficial for Scrutiny 
Members to have a data session to 
understand how it was used and 
analysed. 
We have invested in ALPs at Key Stage 
5 and are considering for Key Stage 4 
as it is far more informative than a 
Capped 9 score when looking at value 
added, not just about hitting average but 
the value that we add to our learners to 
take them above their potential. 

Clarification sought on the Capped 9 
score and the links to the scores 
within the first table. 
Literacy appeared to be performing 
on average in Powys with numeracy 
slightly below. 

The table 3.6 showed that each GCSE 
grade equated to a score. 
The LA average was 41 for literacy 
which equated to just over a C Grade. 
Across the board with numeracy the 
score equated to just below a C Grade. 
With the Capped 9 score they take the 
best 9 grades across qualifying 

Page 8



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

qualifications – including English/ Welsh 
(dependent on language medium), 
Maths and Science which contributes to 
the Capped 9 score. It must be noted 
than the score can alter year on year. 

Could 3.13 be incorporated into table 
3.10 

Unfortunately, it was not possible to 
include 3.13 into the table 3.10 as the 
data does not compare directly. Each 
school has a different family and 
therefore there is no overall figure for 
Powys schools. 

  
Actions: 
Learning and Skills Committee Members to have a development session on data 
including the ALPS data for Key Stage 5. 
  

 
 

8.  THE OFFER FOR KEY STAGE 4  
 

Background 
  

         The purpose of the report was to examine the current provision of 
qualifications on offer in schools across Powys. 

         Aim to highlight strengths and areas where provision was strong, but also 
sought to identify areas where development was required. 

         To support schools in preparing for the changes being made to the 14-16 
qualifications in Wales. 

  
Points raised by the Panel: 

  
Responses received from Officers 

or Cabinet Members. 
Question raised as to why Welsh 
Literature was, and English literature 
was not noted on the list, both 
subjects are surely equal, also why 
were the GCSE’s shown for the 4 core 
subjects but the Welsh equivalent was 
not. Whatever the language medium 
they should be treated equally 
throughout.  

Welsh literature is an option, even in 
the Welsh medium settings. 
Colleagues in the WESP were also 
consulted as to the best way to 
present the information. There is a full 
list which could be shared.  
The curriculum offer of subjects 
including vocational subjects was 
being presented, the Core subjects are 
those taught regardless of the medium 
through which a young person is 
taught. There could be an argument 
for Triple Science to be included as not 
an option as such. 

Could the report show just one figure 
for the number of pupils siting GCSE’s 
in one year. 

Yes, the data is available and could be 
shared. 

Had provision been made for the more 
able and talented pupils, the 
expectation until recently was that 
schools provided for those pupils. 

The more able and talented pupils 
have access to the Seren programme 
which had recently re-commenced. 
The Level 2 additional Maths has not 

Page 9



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

had a great uptake recently as a 
bridging qualification between GCSE 
and A Level. 

How can there be equity in subject 
offer across Powys, in both financial 
terms and staffing resource. 

It was an incredible challenge, 
particularly in the present financial 
climate. However, work would continue 
to be aspirational in what could be 
offered, ensuring a broad balanced 
and inclusive range of qualifications. 

In terms of the Welsh Medium 
Provision why were there numbers of 
pupils who were following courses 
through Welsh medium or bilingual, as 
these could be included with the 
English stream information.  
Bilingual classes do not experience a 
Welsh medium education as the 
teacher may not be able to complete 
the class or provide necessary 
resources. 
The table gave the impression that 
Welsh Medium education was catered 
for. It would be beneficial to know 
exactly what subjects were taught 
through Welsh Medium or taught Bi-
lingually. 

The Service would be more than 
happy to look at a better way of 
capturing the data which would satisfy 
Committee Members requirements.  

Delivery was key, throughout the 
Secondary phase, how many options 
do learners have at that Key Stage. In 
addition, would the number of options 
or choices vary across the Sector and 
what was the average cohort within a 
school or class size required to 
provide that provision within a school. 

In terms of viability it would be great to 
offer all subjects in all mediums to all 
learners, yet all tied to budget. 
The data was available, we have a 
range from schools offering one sort of 
qualification to the widest of 6 /7 
subjects outside of GCSE. The 
schools with lower offers may link 
more with a college. 

  
 
 

9.  WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Items to be included in 2024-25:- 
  
PRU Working Group.  
  
School Visit Programme – including Trochi Working Group visits. 
  
Community School comparison Visits plus non community schools. 
  
Condition of School Buildings visits. 
  
Music Plan update. 
  

Page 10



Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee Wednesday, 20 March 2024 
 

 

Data Analysis member session. 
  
School budgets / Funding Formula – ALN /PRU. 
  
New National 14-16 Qualifications (Vocational Certificate Secondary Education) 
– Sept 2027. 
  
Estyn reports to be a standard agenda item quarterly (where available).  
  

 
 

L. Roberts (Vice Chair) 
County Councillor   

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

CABINET EXECUTIVE 
7th May 2024 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor Pete Roberts 

Portfolio Holder for a Learning Powys 
  
REPORT TITLE: Sustainable Communities for Learning – Strategic 

Outline Programme 2024  
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision 

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to request Cabinet approval to submit a 

new Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) to the Welsh Government’s 
Sustainable Communities for Learning’s nine-year rolling programme.   

 

• Appendix A: Strategic Outline Programme 
 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The Sustainable Communities for Learning is a joint initiative between 

the Welsh Government, the Welsh Local Government Association, 
Councils and Further Education Colleges.  It is a major long-term and 
strategic capital investment programme with the aim of creating a 
generation of 21st century schools and colleges in Wales 

 
2.2 Previously known as the 21st Century Schools and Colleges 

Programme, there have been two bands of funding – Band A which 
started in 2014 and Band B which started in 2019.  These bands were 
based on fixed delivery periods of 5 years with the delivery partner 
having a fixed ‘funding envelope’ based on the total cost of the relevant 
SOP.  

 
2.3 Lessons learned from Band A, and the transition into Band B, have 

highlighted both the complexity and protracted nature associated with 
the delivery of a number of projects through the current ‘fixed’ 
programme timelines. This approach poses challenges for both the 
Welsh Government and delivery partners in the management of the 
programme and, to that end, the rolling programme of investment is 
being implemented to improve efficiency and delivery for both partners 
and the Welsh Government 

 
2.4 The nine-year rolling programme is based upon the following: 
  
  

Page 13

5



Years Expectation 

Years 1,2,3 Projects expected to reach full 
business case within the 3 years 

Years 4,5,6 Projects being developed and 
going through statutory 
consultation 

Years 7,8,9 Pipeline projects 

 
 

If appropriate, Band B projects can be included at the beginning of the 
nine-year capital programme. 

 
2.5 Delivery partners are required to review their rolling programme at least 

every 3 years, by which time it is expected that years 1, 2 and 3 would 
comprise those projects that formed years 4, 5 and 6 of the previous 
revision, subject to those projects remaining a priority for the delivery 
partner with a further 3 years of pipeline projects added to the nine-
year plan. This will focus on a three-year investment plan and draft 
budgets, alongside the Wales Infrastructure Investment Strategy. 

 
2.6 A key difference between the rolling programme and its predecessor is 

that delivery partners won’t be issued with a ‘funding envelope’.  
Instead, an ‘in-principle’ agreement of the project pipeline will be 
approved, recognising the fluctuating nature of the current market.  
However, the intervention rates remain the same as for Band B: 

   

• Community, voluntary controlled and foundation schools 65% 

• Voluntary aided schools of religious character 85% 

• Special schools and pupil referral units (PRUs) 75% 

• Mutual Investment Model (revenue-funded element) 81% 

• Mutual Investment Model (associated capital cost) 65% 

• Extra over-costs of net zero carbon (NZC) (Band B) 100% 
 
 
2.7 The Investment Objectives for the Programme can be found in detail in 

on the following link Sustainable Communities for Learning rolling programme | 

GOV.WALES  but are summarised below:  
 

• Transforming learning environments and learner experience 

• Meeting demand for school places 

• Improving condition and suitability of the education estate 

• Developing sustainable learning environments 

• Supporting the community 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2023/2/1/1675706294/sustainable-communities-learning-rolling-programme.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2023/2/1/1675706294/sustainable-communities-learning-rolling-programme.pdf


 
 
Powys County Council’s Strategic Outline Programme 
 
2.8 The SOP, which can be found at Appendix A, includes a strategic case, 

economic case, commercial case, management case and financial 
case.  It is aligned with the Council’s ambition to develop a more 
sustainable Powys within a challenging financial climate. This means 
reviewing what services are provided by the Council and how they are 
provided to meet current needs and best outcomes, whilst ensuring 
that there are innovative solutions to provide the best services adapted 
for future generations.  It will also play a key part in the successful 
delivery of the Council’s Transforming Education Strategy 2022-32 
which will contribute to the overall vision for a sustainable Powys. 

 
2.11 The Strategy sets out a number of Strategic Aims and Objectives to 

shape the Council’s work to transform the Powys education system 
over the coming years. The Strategic Aims are: 
1. To improve learner entitlement and experience, including 
rationalising primary schools and developing all-age schools 
2. To improve learner entitlement and experienced at post-16 
3. To improve access to Welsh-medium education 
4. To improve ALN provision 

  
2.13 The Strategy also includes an enabling action to implement ‘a major 

capital investment programme that will ensure that schools in Powys 
have inspiring, environmentally sustainable buildings that can provide 
opportunities for wider community activity, including where possible 
childcare services, early years, ALN, multi-agency support and 
community and leisure facilities.’. As the Council looks to shape a new 
future for service delivery, schools will form a critical part of the 
Sustainable Powys initiative and therefore the Strategy will be revised to 
ensure clear alignment, specifically in relation to secondary and post-
16 provision. 

 
2.14 Since the Strategy was approved, it has provided a clear and 

transparent framework for taking forward the Transforming Education 
Programme.  A Work Programme for Wave 2 (2022-2027) has been 
published and is currently being implemented.  The projects within the 
SOP reflect the Wave 2 Work Programme.  

 
2.15 The SOP also reflects how it aligns with key strategic policy drivers 

including the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan; Economic 
regeneration and Town Centre First; Active Travel; Sustainability and 
Decarbonisation; School Organisation; Community Access and 
Additional Learning Needs. 

 
2.16 The Economic Case section of the SOP outlines the potential scope of 

the programme, the Council’s investment objectives and critical 

Page 15



success factors, and the potential options available.  The investment 
objectives for the Programme are: 

 

• To improve learner entitlement and experience by providing modern 
and environmentally sustainable learning environments that enable 
the delivery of the Curriculum for Wales  

• To meet the aspirations of the Council’s Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan 

• To optimise the use of resources across the Council by rationalising 
the schools’ estate and improving the condition of schools 

• To develop community focused schools that enable the effective 
and efficient delivery of public services and multi-agency support for 
children, families and the wider community 

 
2.17 The Critical Success Factors that are part of the evaluation process 

include the following: 

• Strategic Fit 

• Potential Value for Money 

• Potential Affordability 

• Potential Achievability 

• Supply-side/Capacity to deliver 
 
2.18 3 options have been included ranging from the Do Minimum, 

Intermediate and Maximum options and are based on the Wave 2 
Transforming Education Work Programme. These include: 

• Option 1: Do Minimum – Deliver projects currently in design stage 
and any school with condition D categorisation  

• Option 2: As Option 1 with the addition of projects that will deliver 
the aspirations of the WESP 

• Option 3: As Option 2 plus support for further reorganisation of 
primary, secondary and post-16 provision as required, in line with 
the outcomes of Wave 2 and 3 of the Transforming Education 
Programme 

 
 

2.19 Following the option appraisal, the preferred option was Option 3. it 
scored the highest overall against the investment objectives and critical 
success factors, particularly because of its strategic fit in delivering a 
Sustainable Powys, the Transforming Education Strategy and the 
WESP.  It also allows a more flexible approach to investment rather 
than being constrained to specific projects.  

• Option 1 scored the lowest overall due to not maximising the 
investment objectives, however this option is more affordable as it 
is currently profiled within the capital programme.  

 
3. Advice 
 
3.1 It is advised that Cabinet approves the Strategic Outline Programme for 

submission to Welsh Government.  
 

Page 16



3.2 This will ensure the continuation of the current projects and will also 
support the implementation of the Council’s Wave 2 Programme.  
Given that the Rolling Programme is based on a flexible approach, it 
may be possible to bring forward further projects in future, depending 
on affordability and achievability at the time.  

 
3.3 Projects within the Programme will deliver the outcomes of the 

Transforming Education Strategy: it will address some of the schools 
with the worst condition ratings, support pupils with ALN, enable the 
rationalisation of schools, support the delivery of the WESP, develop 
community focused schools and transform the schools estate to a more 
environmentally sustainable model.   

 
3.4 If the Programme is not implemented, then the Council would need to 

fund an on-going maintenance programme for ageing and deteriorating 
school buildings whilst also having to ensure that these schools meet 
net zero targets. The total backlog maintenance figure for the schools 
in Option 3 is just below £25,000,000.  

 
3.5 It would also not be possible to maximise all the benefits of the 

Transforming Education Strategy.  
 
4. Resource Implications 
 
4.1 The estimated total capital cost of the preferred option is £300,000,000.  

The costs are based on the latest estimated costs of the current 
projects that are currently in design stage.  This provides a basis for 
estimated costs for the projects not yet commissioned, based on size of 
school. Once feasibility projects are undertaken on these schools the 
project costs will be revised.  Allowances for inflation have not been 
included in the proposal at this stage. 

 
4.2 It is anticipated that the capital investment will be a mixture of 

construction of new buildings and/or remodelling of the existing 
structures. The option chosen for each site will be dependent on the 
condition and construction type of the existing buildings, their suitability 
for education provision going forwards and the disruption that would be 
caused to the schools if alternative teaching space is required while the 
existing buildings are remodelled.  

 
4.3 All individual projects will need to have robust business cases based on 

the HM Treasury’s 5 Case Business Model.  These require a: 
- Strategic Outline Case 
- Outine Business Case 
- Full Business Case 

 
4.4 The ‘5 cases’ consider the strategic, economic, commercial, financial 

and management elements of a project, and the business cases are 
developed through an iterative process.  Within the economic case, a 
number of options are evaluated to ensure that the option chosen has 

Page 17



the best outcomes for pupils and provides value for money to the 
Council.  Cabinet and Welsh Government are required to approve each 
Case before a project can move on to the next Case.  Welsh 
Government funding is only released if a Full Business Case is 
approved.   

  
 
4.5 The financing for the Programme is as follows: 
 

 Years  
1 to 3 

Years  
4 to 6 

Years  
7 to 9 

Years  
10 to 12 

Total 

Investment 109,009,588 89,451,439 72,038,973 29,500,000 300,000,000 

WG Funding 73,931,888 55,413,215 46,925,332 21,475,000 197,745,435 

PCC Funding 35,077,700 34,038,224 25,038,641 6,300,000 100,454,565 

Church Funding 0 0 75,000 1,725,000 1,800,000 

 
 
4.6 Cabinet will need to consider the appropriate sources to fund the 

council’s contributions required as outlined above. Schemes in years 1 
to 3 are already included in the Council’s capital programme with the 
councils funding being a mix of capital receipts and borrowing. 

 

4.7 The funding for the remaining years (years 4 onwards) has yet to be 
finalised. Any substantial increase in borrowing to fund the future 
schemes will have a detrimental impact on the Council’s revenue 
budget which is currently under extreme pressure. Further work is 
required to identify affordable funding for the Council’s contribution, but 
significant investment is required to maintain the existing school 
buildings in a usable condition. 

 
4.8 If the Council was to fund its contribution of just over £100 million 

entirely through borrowing, this would increase the borrowing costs 
charges to the Council’s revenue budget by an estimated £4.80 million 
once all the schemes have been completed. 

 

 

4.9 The authority would like to explore the option of the Mutual Investment 
Model, however, to be prudent, the funding is based on the Capital 
Investment Model. 

 
4.10 Each school will be reviewed to determine if the community use has an 

impact on the authority’s partial exemption.  However, it is assumed 
that there will be no VAT implications for the proposals. 

 
4.11 The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) comment:  The level of 

investment needed to fund the Council’s contribution to these schemes 
is significant and with the projected constraints on public sector 
finances over the medium term the Council must have due regard to 
the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities to ensure 
that our Capital Investment Plans are affordable, prudent and 

Page 18



sustainable.   The Code ensures that through the Councils Asset 
Management Plans, Capital and Treasury Management Strategy and 
the Medium Term Financial Plan, we carefully consider the totality of 
our capital expenditure and investment decisions.  In arriving at a 
decision on how best we fund our Capital Programme we will consider 
all the resources available to us, the range of possible options, the 
prioritisation of our resources and how these contribute to the provision 
of services. 

  
4.12 The detail of how the schemes can be financed will be developed 

through later stages of the Business Cases and will be subject to 
further approval as that progresses.  On this basis the recommendation 
can be supported. 

 
   
5. Legal implications 
 
5.1 Legal: The recommendation can be supported from a legal point of 

view  
 
5.2 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services ( Monitoring Officer ) has 

commented as follows: “ I note the legal comment and support the 
recommendation”.  

 
6. Climate Change & Nature Implications 
 
6.1 This Programme will deliver schools that are net zero in operation and 

will also reduce the number of schools that would need to be retro-
fitted to meet net-zero.  However, it is recognised that the 
reorganisation of schools would require additional transport and that 
there would be a negative impact on the environment.  Therefore, it is 
essential that the projects include a commitment to improving 
biodiversity to offset this. The Council’s Property Design Team work 
alongside appointed ecologists from each project’s inception to identify 
areas for biodiversity improvement. Alterations are made during 
construction contracts against 5-year action plans, and changes are 
assessed via the BREEAM methodology in order to help achieve 
‘Excellent’ accreditation, which is the target on new school buildings. 

 
 
7. Data Protection 
  
 N/A 
 
8.  Comment from local member(s) 
 N/A 
 
 
9.   Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

Page 19



 Individual impact assessments will be undertaken when individual 
proposals and business cases are presented to Cabinet. 

 
 
10. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Strategic Outline Programme is approved 
for submission to Welsh Government  

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Astley / Marianne Evans 
Tel:   01597 826265 / 01597 826155 
Email:                       sarah.astley@powys.gov.uk / marianne.evans@powys.gov.uk  
 
Head of Service:      Georgie Bevan 
 
Corporate Director:  Richard Jones                                 
 

 
CABINET REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION X 
 

 

Page 20

mailto:sarah.astley@powys.gov.uk
mailto:marianne.evans@powys.gov.uk


 
 
 

 

 
 

DRAFT 

 
 

Powys County Council 
 
 

Strategic Outline Programme 
(SOP) – Rolling Programme 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

Overview 
 
This document is aimed at local authorities, further education institutions, and 
diocesan authorities when preparing a Strategic Outline Programme for the next 
phase of strategic infrastructure funding from the Sustainable Communities for 
Learning Programme which will see the start of delivery partners’ rolling programme.  
The form aims to capture your Rolling Programme - Strategic Outline Programme 
(SOP) aligning with your latest Estate Strategy. 
 
Guidance is given at the beginning of each section, but should be read in conjunction 
with Rolling Programme: Sustainable Communities for Learning rolling programme | 
GOV.WALES and with the HM Treasury Guide to Developing The Programme 
Business Case, Guide to developing the Programme Business Case (gov.wales) 
 
Please complete all relevant sections of this form including the statement of approval 
of this information in Section 9.  
 
Please note that the budget for the Rolling Programme is a fixed annual budget and 
prioritisation of projects will take place should applications for funding exceed the 
resources available. In the first instance projects will be prioritised based on building 
condition and sufficiency, but the exercise may consider wider investment objectives 
such as, but not limited to, flexibility of assets, efficiency of the education estate and 
deprivation. 
 

Please return a signed, electronic copy of the form to the 
Sustainable Communities for Learning Mailbox: 

 
Cymunedau Dysgu Cynaliadwy / Sustainable Communities for Learning 

SustainableCommunitiesForLearning@gov.wales 
 

 
Section Contents: 
1. Rolling Programme Costs ....................................................................... 3 
2. Executive Summary ................................................................................ 5 
3. Strategic Case ........................................................................................ 6 
3.1 Strategic Case - Welsh in Education Strategic Plans / Further 

Education and Apprenticeship Welsh-medium Action Plan .................. 8 
3.2 Strategic Case - Regeneration and Town Centres First…………… ..... 9 
3.3 Strategic Case - Active Travel  ............................................................. 10 
3.4 Strategic Case - Sustainability and Decarbonisation  ......................... 11 
3.5 Strategic Case - School Organisation Code  ....................................... 12 
3.6 Strategic Case - Community Focus ..................................................... 13 
3.7 Strategic Case - Additional Learning Needs ........................................ 14 
4. Economic Case  .................................................................................... 15 
5. Commercial Case ................................................................................. 16 
6. Financial case ....................................................................................... 17 
7. Management Case ............................................................................... 18 
8. Rolling Programme Projects ................................................................. 21 
9. Statement of Approval for SOP – Rolling Programme ........................ 25 
  

Page 22

https://www.gov.wales/sustainable-communities-learning-rolling-programme
https://www.gov.wales/sustainable-communities-learning-rolling-programme
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-08/guide-to-developing-the-programme-business-case.pdf
mailto:SustainableCommunitiesForLearning@gov.wales


OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

3 of 41 

1. Rolling Programme Costs 
 

 
Costs should be calculated based on the relevant cost benchmark for year 1-3 of 
your rolling programme with a baseline year 4 cost for the remainder of the 
programme i.e. years 4 to 9. Identified separately, optimism bias as per HM 
Treasury Green Book should be included together with anticipated abnormal costs. 
 
 
Cost share between Welsh Government and delivery partners should be based on 
the following intervention rates. 
 
Category Intervention Rate (%) 

Community, Voluntary Controlled Schools and Foundation 65 

Voluntary Aided Schools of Religious Character 85 

Special Schools & PRUs 75 

Mutual Investment Model (Revenue Funded element) 81 

Mutual Investment Model (Associated Capital Cost) 65 

Further Education Institutions 65 

Extra Over Costs of Net Zero Carbon1  100 
 

 
 
 

Total Project Costs Years 1,2 & 3 
e.g. £45,000,000 

£109,009,588 

Welsh Government contribution 
e.g. £29,250,000 

£73,931,888 

LA/ FEI contribution 
e.g. £15,750,000 

£35,077,700 

 
  

 
1 Subject to Ministerial Approval for future years. 

Page 23



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

4 of 41 

 
Total Project Costs Years 4,5 & 6 
e.g. £45,000,000 

£89,451,439 

Welsh Government contribution 
e.g. £29,250,000 

£55,413,215 

LA/ FEI contribution 
e.g. £15,750,000 

£34,038,224 

 
 
 

Total Project Costs Years 7,8 & 9 
e.g. £45,000,000 

£72,038,973 

Welsh Government contribution 
e.g. £29,250,000 

£46,925,332 

LA/ FEI contribution 
e.g. £15,750,000 

£25,113,641 

 
 

Total Project Costs Years 10, 11 & 12 
e.g. £45,000,000 

£25,500,000 

Welsh Government contribution 
e.g. £29,250,000 

£21,475,000 

LA/ FEI contribution 
e.g. £15,750,000 

£8,025,000 

  

Page 24



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

5 of 41 

2. Executive Summary  
 

Outline the main focus of your SOP/ Estates Strategy?  
1000 words maximum 

 
Powys County Council’s Strategic Outline Programme is aligned with the Council’s ambition 
to develop a more sustainable Powys within a challenging financial climate. This means 
reviewing what services are provided by the Council and how they are provided to meet 
current needs and best outcomes, whilst ensuring that there are innovative solutions to 
provide the best services adapted for future generations.  It will also play a key part in the 
successful delivery of the Council’s Transforming Education Strategy 2022-32 which will 
contribute to the overall vision for a sustainable Powys. 
 
The Strategy sets out a number of Strategic Aims and Objectives to shape the Council’s work 
to transform the Powys education system over the coming years. The Strategic Aims are: 
 
1. To improve learner entitlement and experience, including rationalising primary  schools 
and developing all-age schools 
2. To improve learner entitlement and experience at post-16 
3. To improve access to Welsh-medium education 
4. To improve ALN provision 
 
The Strategy also includes an enabling action to implement ‘a major capital investment 
programme that will ensure that schools in Powys have inspiring, environmentally 
sustainable buildings that can provide opportunities for wider community activity, including 
where possible childcare services, early years, ALN, multi-agency support and community 
and leisure facilities.’. As the Council looks to shape a new future for service delivery, 
schools will form a critical part of the Sustainable Powys initiative and therefore the 
Strategy will be revised to ensure clear alignment, specifically in relation to secondary and 
14-19 provision. 
 
Since the Strategy was approved, it has provided a clear and transparent framework for 
taking forward the Transforming Education Programme.  A Work Programme for Wave 2 
(2022-2027) has been published and is currently being implemented.  The projects within 
the SOP reflect the Wave 2 Work Programme.  
 
The SOP also reflects how it aligns with key strategic policy drivers including the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan; Economic regeneration and Town Centre First; Active Travel; 
Sustainability and Decarbonisation; School Organisation; Community Access and Additional 
Learning Needs. 
 
The Economic Case section of the SOP outlines the potential scope of the programme, the 
Council’s investment objectives and critical success factors, and the potential options 
available.  The investment objectives for the Programme are: 
 

• To improve learner entitlement and experience by providing modern and 
environmentally sustainable learning environments that enable the delivery of 
the Curriculum for Wales  

Page 25



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

6 of 41 

• To meet the aspirations of the Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

• To optimise the use of resources across the Council by rationalising the schools’ 
estate and improving the condition of schools 

• To develop community focused schools that enable the effective and efficient 
delivery of public services and multi-agency support for children, families and 
the wider community 

 
The Critical Success Factors that are part of the evaluation process include the following: 

• Strategic Fit 

• Potential Value for Money 

• Potential Affordability 

• Potential Achievability 

• Supply-side/Capacity to deliver 
 
 
5 options have been included ranging from the Do Minimum, Intermediate and Maximum 
options and are based on the Wave 2 Transforming Education Work Programme. These 
include: 

• Option 1: Do Minimum – Deliver projects currently in design stage and any 
school with condition D categorisation  

• Option 2: As Option 1 with the addition of projects that will deliver the 
aspirations of the WESP 

• Option 3: As Option 2 plus support for further reorganisation of primary, 
secondary and post-16 provision as required, in line with the outcomes of Wave 
2 and 3 of the Transforming Education Programme 
 

 
Following the option appraisal, the preferred option was Option 3. it scored the highest 
overall against the investment objectives and critical success factors, particularly because of 
its strategic fit in delivering a Sustainable Powys, the Transforming Education Strategy and 
the WESP.  It also allows a more flexible approach to investment rather than being 
constrained to specific projects.  
Option 1 scored the lowest overall due to not maximising the investment objectives, 
however this option is more affordable as it is currently profiled within the Council’s capital 
programme.  
 
Projects within SOP will deliver the outcomes of the Transforming Education Strategy and 
contribute to the development of a more sustainable Powys: it will address some of the 
schools with the worst condition ratings, support pupils with ALN, enable the rationalisation 
of schools, support the delivery of the WESP, develop community focused schools and 
transform the schools estate to a more environmentally sustainable model.   
 
The estimated total capital cost of the preferred option is £300,000,000.  The costs are based 
on the latest estimated costs of the current projects that are currently in design stage.  This 
provides a basis for estimated costs for the projects not yet commissioned, based on size of 
school. Once feasibility projects are undertaken on these schools the project costs will be 
revised.  Allowances for inflation have not been included in the proposal at this stage. 
 

Page 26



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

7 of 41 

It is anticipated that the capital investment will be a mixture of construction of new buildings 
and/or remodelling of the existing structures. The option chosen for each site will be 
dependent on the condition and construction type of the existing buildings, their suitability 
for education provision going forwards and the disruption that would be caused to the 
schools if alternative teaching space is required while the existing buildings are remodelled. 
There will be a business case for each scheme which will take these factors into account and 
will cost the different options for each site to ensure that the option chosen has the best 
outcomes for pupils and provides value for money to the Council. 
 
 

Page 27



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

8 of 41 

 

Page 28



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

9 of 41 

 

 

3. Strategic Case 
The purpose of the strategic dimension of the Strategic Outline Programme is to 
make the case for change and to demonstrate how it provides strategic fit.  Specific 
strategic fit with Welsh Government policies is required in line with the sub sections. 

Page 29



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

10 of 41 

 

 
 

How does your Programme link to local and national strategies e.g. the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, Cymraeg 2050: Welsh 
language Strategy and childcare strategies? 
750 words maximum 

 
Powys County Council’s Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan – Stronger, Fairer, Greener – 
outlines the Council’s ambition for the county by 2027 as follows: 
 
• Stronger - We will become a county that succeeds together, with communities and people 
that are well connected socially, and are personally and economically resilient. 
 • Fairer - We will be an open, well-run, Council where people’s voices are heard and help to 
shape our work and priorities, with fairer, more equal, access to services and opportunities. 
We will work to tackle poverty and inequality to support the well-being of the people of 
Powys. 
 • Greener - We want to ensure a greener future for Powys, where our well-being is linked to 
that of the natural world, and our response to the climate and nature emergencies is at the 
heart of everything we do.  
 
Delivering valued local government services is at the heart of all that Powys County Council 
does. With changing times and economic conditions, the Council understands the need to 
be pro-active, innovative and forward-thinking to deliver quality public services for the 
future.   
  
The Council is committed to working in partnership to explore the opportunities to make 
the changes needed to build a stronger, fairer and greener future for Powys- building a 
Sustainable Powys 
 
This means reviewing what services are provided by the Council and how they are provided 
to meet current needs and best outcomes, whilst ensuring that there are innovative 
solutions to provide the best services adapted for future generations.    
  
Sustainable Powys is about working together to:  
  

• Design a future for the local authority that delivers stronger, fairer and greener 
services whilst remaining within the available budget.  

• Build resilience so community-led solutions can help meet what is needed locally.  
 
The Council’s guiding principles are based on the well-being of future generations. The 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of the nation. It will ensure that the 
Council thinks more about the long-term, works better with people and communities and 
each other, looks to prevent problems and takes a more joined-up approach. This will help 

create a Powys that everyone wants to live in, now and in the future. 
 
 

Page 30



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

11 of 41 

Strategic Fit 
 

National policy 
drivers 

Relevance to this Programme 

Sustainable 
Communities 
for Learning 

• Good quality school buildings in place of the current poor quality 

school buildings 

• Better resources which will enable the successful implementation 

of strategies for school improvement and lead to better 

educational outcomes 

• Reduction in recurrent costs, energy, consumption and carbon 

emissions 

• Resources for the whole community which can offer a range of 

facilities, such as childcare and adult training  

• Better quality ICT provision and technology, which will drive 

improvements in educational standards 

Curriculum for 
Wales 

Professor Donaldson’s independent report published in 2015 
recommended appropriate fit for purpose learning environments that 
will facilitate the delivery of the curriculum and ensure children 
develop as: 

• Ambitious capable learners 

• Enterprising, creative contributors ready to play full part in life and 

work 

• Ethical and informed Welsh citizens 

• Healthy and confident individuals/value members of society 

Meeting the aspirations outlined of ‘Successful Futures’ and ‘Qualified 
for Life’ is a key purpose of the Council’s Transforming Education 
Programme, ensuring that educational provision will align with the four 
core purposes of ‘Successful Futures’. 

Cymraeg 2050 

The Programme has integral links with the Welsh Government’s 
aspiration to create a million Welsh speakers by 2050, with the 
Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP)  focusing on 
creating new Welsh medium provision, therefore facilitating demand.  
The Programme includes specific investment at each of the three sites 
included in the WESP.  

Building a 
Brighter Future 

- Early Years 
and Childcare 

Plan 

The provision of childcare will be a key consideration in any projects 
taken forward which include primary aged provision. The Programme 
will support the roll out of the Welsh Government’s commitment to 
fund 30 hours of early years education & care over the next 4 years in 
any submission we make that includes primary provision, to ensure 
sufficient places are available to meet the expected demand. Early 
years and childcare provision has ben included within all previous and 
current projects.  

Page 31



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

12 of 41 

Wales 
Infrastructure 

Investment 
Plan 

The projects proposed for the Programme are aligned with the Wales 
Infrastructure Investment Plan as implementation of the projects will 
stimulate jobs and local economies in Powys. 

ALN Reform 

The Programme is aligned with the Additional Learning Needs 
Transformation Programme – aiming to: 
• ensure that all learners with ALN are supported to overcome 

barriers to learning and can achieve their full potential 

• improve the planning and delivery of support for learners from 0 to 

25 with ALN, placing learners’ needs, views, wishes and feelings at 

the heart of the process 

• focus on the importance of identifying needs early and putting in 

place timely and effective interventions which are monitored and 

adapted to ensure they deliver the desired outcomes. 

Climbing Higher 

The Programme will meet the objectives of the Welsh Government’s 
Climbing Higher Next Steps strategy by ensuring that sports facilities 
are an integral part of every project, providing opportunities for pupils 
and wider communities to participate in sports and recreation 
activities, increasing the level of phyiscal activity which in turn will lead 
to greater wellbeing.  Sports faciliites such as Multi Use Games Areas 
have been included in previous projects and those currently in 
development.  

Belonging, 
engaging and 
participating 

Ensuring that schools are attractive and safe learning environments, 
able to provide support and services to children and their families to 
improve attendance 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

13 of 41 

Highlight any differences to your strategic case since Band B version of your 
SOP/ Estates strategy was produced. 
 
Please provide details of benefits and risks of your Programme. 
750 words maximum 

 
Since the Council’s SOP for Band B was developed in 2017, the Council has developed a new 
Strategy for Transforming Education in Powys. The Strategy includes the following Strategic 
Aims: 
 

Strategic Aim 1: We will improve learner entitlement and experience 
 

Strategic Aim 2: We will improve learner entitlement and experience for post-16 learners 
 

Strategic Aim 3: We will improve access to Welsh-medium provision across all key stages 
 

Strategic Aim 4: We will improve the provision for learners with SEN/ALN 
 
The Strategy also includes an enabling action to implement ‘a major capital investment 
programme that will ensure that schools in Powys have inspiring, environmentally 
sustainable buildings that can provide opportunities for wider community activity, including 
where possible childcare services, early years, ALN, multi-agency support and community 
and leisure facilities.’  As the Council looks to shape a new future for service delivery, 
schools will form a critical part of the Sustainable Powys initiative and therefore the 
Strategy will be revised to ensure clear alignment, specifically in relation to secondary and 
14-19 provision.  
 
In addition, the Council has developed a new Welsh in Education Strategic Plan for 2022-32 
which is fully aligned with the Strategy for Transforming Education. 
 
Benefits 
 
The benefits of the programme are aligned with the Guiding Principles outlined within the 
new Strategy and are as follows: 

• A world class rural education system that has learner entitlement at its core 

• Schools that are fully inclusive, with a culture of deep collaboration in order to 

improve learner outcomes and experience 

• A broad choice and high quality of provision for 14 – 19 year old learners, that includes 

both academic and vocational provision, meeting the needs of all learners, 

communities and the Powys economy 

• Welsh-medium provision that is accessible and provides a full curriculum in Welsh 

from Meithrin to age 19 and beyond 

• Provision for learners with Special Educational Needs (SEN)/Additional Learning 

Needs (ALN) that is accessible as near to home as is practicably possible, with the 

appropriate specialist teaching, support and facilities that enables every learner to 

meet their potential 

Page 33



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

14 of 41 

• A digitally-rich schools sector that enables all learners and staff to enhance their 

teaching and learning experience 

• Community-focused schools that are the central point for multi-agency services to 

support children, young people, families and the community 

• Early years provision that is designed to meet the needs of all children, mindful of 

their particular circumstances, language requirements or any special or additional 

learning needs 

• Financially and environmentally sustainable schools 

• The highest priority is given to staff wellbeing and professional development  

 
Risks 
 

• Cost of borrowing places a strain on the Council’s ability to implement the 
Programme 

• Reduction in capital funding available 

• Inflationary pressures  

• Changes or delays in projects affects the availability of funding 

• Changes to local and/or national political leadership 

• Lack of officer capacity to deliver projects 

• Lack of public support 

• Projects do not deliver appropriate budget savings 

• Construction suppliers have insufficient capacity and time 

• Inability to meet the quality aspirations and requirements of the Council 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.1. Strategic Case - Welsh in Education Strategic Plans 
(WESP) or Further Education and Apprenticeship Welsh-
medium Action Plan 

Page 34



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

15 of 41 

How does your Programme align with the relevant Welsh Language plan? 
For LA’s you will need to demonstrate how your proposed investment plan will 
support the delivery of the agreed target of year 1 learners over the life of your 10 
year plan.  
500 words maximum 

The Council’s Strategic Aim for Welsh-medium education is ‘to improve access to Welsh-
medium provision across all key stages”, as outlined in the Strategy for Transforming 
Education in Powys. This recognises the particular geographic and linguistic nature of a 
large, rural and sparsely populated county where there are some areas which are 
traditionally Welsh-speaking areas and other areas where little or no Welsh is spoken. The 
Council has a duty to ensure that all learners in Powys have the same entitlement and 
experience, regardless of the medium of their education.  
 
In order to address these issues, the Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), 
aligned with the Strategy for Transforming Education in Powys, provides a vital opportunity 
to develop Welsh-medium education across the county for the next ten years. The 
education system is the key driver for increasing the number of Welsh speakers in Powys 
and the Council’s contribution towards the target of a million Welsh speakers by 2050. The 
Council’s mission will be to facilitate this growth and to promote the opportunities of 
bilingualism, and to do so in a planned, co-ordinated, proactive and ambitious manner.  
 
By 2032, Powys County Council’s (PCC) target is to increase the year 1 pupils being taught 
through the medium of Welsh in Powys by 14 percentage points to 36%. This is the 
maximum target for the range suggested by the Welsh Government for Powys, and the 
Council’s ambition is to exceed this target.  
 
The Council plans to meet, and exceed, this target by implementing a programme of 
transformational change as follows: 
 

• Ensuring that more parents and families are aware of the benefits of Welsh-medium 
education and bilingualism from birth, are signposted to Welsh-medium provision 
with clear progression routes throughout all key phases of education 
 

• Ensuring that there is access to Welsh-medium early years and primary provision in 
all 13 localities in Powys by: 
 

- Establishing new Welsh-medium early years provision (Cylchoedd Ti a Fi and 
Cylchoedd Meithrin) 

- Supporting English-medium/bilingual early years providers to move along the 
language continuum 

- Establishing new Welsh-medium primary schools  
- Supporting dual-stream/English-medium primary schools to move along the 

language continuum so that they can provide Welsh-medium immersion 
education until the age of seven or eleven 

 

• Establishing Welsh-medium secondary provision in at least 3 localities in Powys. 
Powys does not yet have a designated Welsh-medium secondary school and families 

Page 35



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

16 of 41 

are unable to choose this option, unlike all other authorities in Wales.  To address 
this, the Council has already embarked on a transformational change programme:   

 
a) The Council’s Cabinet has already approved that Ysgol Bro Hyddgen, Machynlleth 

changes from a dual-stream school to a Welsh-medium school on a phased basis 
– plans for a new school building here are in development. 

b)  Formal consultation has recently taken place on a proposal to change Ysgol Bro 
Caereinion from a dual-stream school to Welsh-medium school, again on a 
phased basis but with Reception and Year 7 changing at the same time.  Cabinet 
considered the feedback to the consultation and agreed to publish a statutory 
notice. Ysgol Bro Caereinion is an all-age school on 2 sites, with significant 
building condition issues, and therefore Investment is likely to be needed here.  

c) The third Welsh-medium development is around the transformation of Ysgol 
Calon Cymru, which currently delivers secondary education on 2 sites in 
Llandrindod Wells and Builth Wells.  As outlined in the WESP, the intentionis to 
develop a new build campus in Llandrindod Wells that will provide English-
medium secondary education for Ysgol Calon Cymru, whilst a new all-age Welsh-
medium school is established in Builth Wells in a remodelled campus.   

 
The development of designated Welsh-medium provision that is accessible across the 
county is part of the Council’s strategy to meet its target to increase the number of Year 1 
pupils in Welsh-medium provision.  This is because families will be able to see that there are 
clear progression pathways for Welsh-medium education from the early years through to 
post-16.   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

17 of 41 

3.2. Strategic Case - Regeneration and Town Centre First 
How does your Programme link to these policy areas? 
500 words maximum 

Powys County Council is part of Growing Mid Wales Partnership, which is a regional 
partnership and engagement arrangement between the private and public sectors, and with 
Welsh Government. The partnership seeks to represent the region's interests and priorities 
for improvements to the local economy. 
 
Growing Mid Wales draws together local business, academic leaders and national and local 
government to create a vision for the future growth of Mid-Wales and influence and 
champion our future expansion. 

Across the public, third and private sectors in Mid Wales, Growing Mid Wales has developed 
consensus on priorities for the region, and a vision that, by 2035, Mid Wales will be: 

‘An enterprising and distinctive region delivering economic growth driven by innovation, 
skills, connectivity and more productive jobs supporting prosperous and bilingual 
communities;   

Economic regeneration in Powys is based on a place based approach. This approach 
provides opportunities to build on our distinctive strengths, stepping up our investment in 
town centres, including providing better access to open spaces, the creation of remote 
working hubs, and making sure that our public services are more accessible, adopting a 
‘Town Centre First principle’ as part of our decision making.   

The Transforming Education Programme is aligned with the Council’s Transforming Towns 
Programme, and there are now Investment Plans for every town in the county. The 
development of new schools within towns such as Welshpool already shows how new 
school building developments can help regenerate an area, by providing facilities that 
benefit communities and that can provide access to a range of support services for children 
and families.  

The Transforming Education Programme plays a key part in the regeneration of the county 
by ensuring that children and young people in Powys are able to learn and thrive in 
buildings that meet the needs of education in the 21st Century which will contribute to the 
development of a skilled population.   

Investing in net-zero school buildings contributes to the Council’s ambition to become a 
greener county, which is a key priority for the Council, the Growing Mid Wales Partnership 
and the Regional Economic Framework for Mid Wales.  

Social Value  

Powys County Council is committed to promoting social value through its contracts. As part 
of this commitment, the Council has embraced the Welsh TOMs (Themes, Outcomes, and 
Measures). These TOMs provide a structured framework for evaluating tenders, ensuring 
that we achieve the maximum possible social value. Importantly, this approach allows us to 
actively monitor social value delivery throughout the contract lifecycle. 

Page 37



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

18 of 41 

Moreover, the Council integrates the seven Wellbeing Goals outlined in the Future 
Generations Act 2015 into the pre-procurement process for all tenders. By embedding these 
goals from the outset, we ensure that social value remains at the forefront of our 
contracting activities. 

Looking ahead, the Council is actively mapping the Powys region to gain a comprehensive 
understanding of social value needs. This strategic mapping will enable us to focus contracts 
on specific areas within the county, addressing critical needs such as employment 
opportunities, apprenticeships, green spaces, and alleviating deprivation and make a 
meaningful difference in the community.  
 

 

 
  

Page 38



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

19 of 41 

3.3. Strategic Case - Active Travel 
How does your Programme link to this policy area? 
500 words maximum 

The Council continuously promotes active travel and undertakes actions and initiatives to 
encourage uptake of walking and cycling in the County. It understands the importance of 
local support for scheme development and continues its policy of engaging with 
communities from the earliest opportunity.  
 
There is early engagement with the Active Travel team during the inception period of a new 
school build so that this is a key consideration during early design, building upon any active 
travel developments already underway.  These are a combination of footpaths and cycling 
routes. Active Travel routes are now in place at all new school developments plus in other 
areas as well e.g. Welshpool, Llandrindod Wells and Newtown.  
 
Whilst there are Active Travel Plans already developed for 11 of the county’s towns,  further 
bespoke schemes may be required in more rural areas.  
 
 

 
  

Page 39



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

20 of 41 

3.4. Strategic Case - Sustainability and Decarbonisation 
How does your Programme contribute to decarbonisation, sustainability 
including a positive contribution towards ecology? 
500 words maximum 

Energy standards 
 
The Council has already has already designed schools to Passivhaus standard and has 
obtained full Passivhaus certification for Welshpool C.i.W Primary School.  It will continue to 
ensure that all future school builds are built to similar energy standards whilst also 
monitoring the energy performance and associated energy costs to ensure that this is 
affordable, and doesn’t become a financial burden on individual schools.  
 
A Sustainable Design Toolkit is currently under development to ensure that sustainability is 
built in to design from inception.  
 
The Council has also recently carried out condition assessment on all its schools which will 
align with the energy assessments that are being carried out by the Welsh Government.  
This will enable the Council to understand the nature of investment needed to move 
schools towards net zero.  
 
Sustainable Procurement 

The Council has adopted a proactive and systematic approach to sustainable procurement, 
delivering a range of benefits while optimising resource allocation.  

The Sustainable Procurement initiative was launched with clear and ambitious objectives, 
primarily centred on achieving carbon neutrality by 2030. To date, the Council has made 
significant progress in various aspects of the initiative, as evidenced below: 

• Influencing Tenders – The initiative has so far successfully influenced 34 tenders, 
encompass a variety of approaches, including technical scoring adjustments and the 
integration of key performance indicators into contracts. 

• Initiation Documents and Wellbeing Goals - as part of the early consideration 
process, an Initiation Document has been embedded for all procurements. These 
documents detail how sustainability, and the seven Wellbeing goals will be 
integrated into the procurement process. This is now being built upon  and has 
recently incorporated the Welsh Sustainable Risk Assessment tool for procurements 
above national thresholds. 

• In order to reduce carbon emissions, the Council is requesting Carbon Reduction 
Plans from suppliers with an annual spend above £2 million. To date, five of these 
plans  have been succesfully obtained and others are progressing.   

• Delivery to Desktop Tender - Notable success has been achieved in changing 
behaviours regarding the "Delivery to Desktop" tender. This approach includes a 
staged introduction of remanufactured laptops, a sustainable practice that 
contributes to waste reduction and lowers embodied carbon. 

The Council’s Green Network is a key component of the initiative and has brought together 
like-minded individuals across the organization into a community of stakeholders. This 

Page 40



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

21 of 41 

collaborative effort is driving a groundswell of enthusiasm and commitment advancing the 
sustainable procurement goals. 

The Sustainable Procurement initiative is making significant strides towards the Council’s 
overarching goal of achieving Net Zero by 2030, particularly within the supply chain. The 
evidence of these accomplishments is reflected in the tangible outcomes that have been 
achieved, including the influence on tenders, the incorporation of sustainability and 
wellbeing goals, the collection of Carbon Reduction Plans, and the adoption of sustainable 
practices. 

 
The Council’s Property Design Team work alongside appointed ecologists from each 
project’s inception to identify areas for biodiversity improvement. Alterations are made 
during construction contracts against 5-year action plans, and changes are assessed via the 
BREEAM methodology in order to help achieve ‘Excellent’ accreditation, which is the target 
on new school buildings.  

 
  

Page 41



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

22 of 41 

3.5. Strategic Case - Demand for Places 
How does your Programme link to School Organisation policy area or for 
colleges explain your projections for demand? 
500 words maximum 
 
The county continues to see a decrease in pupil numbers, especially in the primary 
sector which will then impact the secondary sector in later years. 
 

 
 

 
 
With a commitment in the Transformation Strategy to establish all-age schools and 
rationalise primary provision, the Council’s approach to school reorganisation is mainly by 
carrying out reviews of schools in a specific catchment area. A review has been completed 
in the Llanfyllin catchment area, for example, which has concluded a preferred way forward 
which includes rationalising the number of schools from 11 to 6, subject to the necessary 
statutory school reorganisation processes.  The review also recommends capital investment 
in 3 projects in the catchment as well.   
 

Page 42



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

23 of 41 

However, it is also possible to review individual or groups of schools outside a catchment 
review if there are certain circumstances that deem a review necessary.   
 
Due to the on-going economic challenges facing the Council, there is a need to further 
increase the pace of school reorganisation in Powys.   
 
However, even though primary pupil numbers across Powys are continuing to fall thereby 
increasing the number of surplus places across the county, in some areas individual schools 
are at or over capacity which has an impact on the availability of alternative places if 
schools are closed.  This means that the Council wishes to develop new build area primary 
schools in some rural areas, which could see schools amalgamating on new sites, which 
requires capital investment.  
 
Investment is also required to support those schools that have already gone through a 
reorganisation process linked to the establishment of all-age schools or a change of 
language category.   The Council’s current all-age schools aren’t able to operate in the most 
effective way due to the way the different phases of the school are configured – either the 
primary and secondary sectors are located a distance apart or the condition is a significant 
problem.  Designs for a new build at Ysgol Bro Hyddgen in Machynlleth are already well-
developed, however, Ysgol Llanfyllin and Ysgol Bro Caereinion are newly established all-age 
schools with specific issues meaning that the benefits of the all-age model are constrained 
by issues with the buildings.   
 
 

 
  

Page 43



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

24 of 41 

3.6. Strategic Case - Community Access 
How does your Programme support your wider communities, in every 
aspect of social, environmental and economic life as well as through 
educational provision? LA’s to identify contributions towards Community 
Focused Schools. 
500 words maximum 
 
Within the Transforming Education Strategy there is a commitment to develop an 
infrastructure of all-age (sometimes known as all-through) schools.  Initially, these may be 
multi-sited all-age schools, however, the ultimate aim is to develop new purpose-built schools 
that will not only provide state of the art facilities for teaching and learning, but also childcare 
and early years provision, community and leisure facilities, multi-agency areas that can 
provide support for learners and their families and SEN/ALN facilities of the highest quality.   
 
As the Council proceeds to change the way it delivers its services to meet the challenges of 
the financial environment, the intention is that schools become community hubs that are 
used for more than education, providing focal points for wider service provision in local 
communities and able to be used outside of school hours to support local groups.  In every 
project, flexible areas for community and multi-agency support will be a key component, 
providing valuable support not only for pupils but also their families and the wider 
community.   Integrated access to sports provision will become standard within all projects.   
 
The SOP also aligns with the Council’s Transforming Towns Programme, as the development 
of new schools in key towns underpin the economy and social infrastructure of a town.  – 
schools underpin the economy and social infrastructure of a town.  

 

Page 44



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

25 of 41 

3.7. Strategic Case - Additional Learning Needs 
How does your Programme link to this policy area? 
500 words maximum 

The Council has three Special Schools in the County – Ysgol Penmaes in Brecon and Ysgol 
Robert Owen (previously known as Ysgol Cedewain) in Newtown, and Brynllywarch Hall 
School, Kerry.   Ysgol Penmaes is in a relatively new school building and Ysgol Robert Owen 
is in construction, due to open to pupils in September 2024.  Plans for a replacement school 
building for Brynllywarch Hall School is well underway with the design phase now 
completed, planning permission obtained and a tender exercise to take place over the next 
few months.  It is anticipated that the new building will open to pupils in the autumn term 
2025.  
 
Following the development of projects during Band B, as outlined above, the Council is now 
undertaking a wider reivew of the ALN Strategy in light of the changing demands on 
education in the aftermath of the Covid pandemic.  This review will include the 
identification of the appropriate ALN provision that needs to be provided to complete the 3 
Special Schools across the county.  The outcomes of the review will also feed into the ALN 
requirements section of the standardised primary design model that is currently being 
developed by the Council’s Property Design Team to try to minimise design costs in future 
projects, based on the experience of the current and ongoing developments in the capital 
programme.  
 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 45



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

26 of 41 

4. Economic Case 
The purpose of the economic dimension of the Strategic Outline Programme is to 
identify the proposal that delivers best social value to society, including wider social 
and environmental effects. 
 

 
Highlight any differences to the Economic Case since the latest version of 
your SOP/ Estates strategy was produced.   
1000 words maximum 

The previous Investment Objectives for Band B were as follows: 
 

- To improve the condition of school buildings in accordance with the authority’s 
Strategic Asset Management Plan and the authority’s vision for schools, as outlined 
in the School Organisation Policy   

- To meet the aspirations of the authority’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan establish 
new Welsh-medium provision 

- To optimise the use of infrastructure and resources 
 
The Council’s new Investment Objectives are are aligned with the principles of the Council’s 
vision for a Stronger, Fairer, Greener Powys, delivering the principles of a Sustainable Powys 
and the aims of Transforming Education Strategy and the WESP,  
 
Individual projects have been identified based on the following investment objectives: 
 

- To improve learner entitlement and experience by providing environmentally 
sustainable learning environments that enable the delivery of the Curriculum for 
Wales  

- To meet the aspirations of the Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
- To optimise the use of resources across the Council by rationalising the schools’ 

estate and improving the condition of schools 
- To develop community focused schools that enable the effective and efficient 

delivery of public services and multi-agency support for children, families and the 
wider community 

 
Critical Success Factors remain the same as in the previous SOP. 
 
 
Potential scope of the Programme 
 
The Programme’s scope is education for 4 – 18 year olds in Powys.  Within this scope, 
options have been based on the degree of optimisation from the Sustainable Communities 
for Learning Programme i.e. the size of the investment, which is a combination of the level 
of business needs, resources available and deliverability.  
 
Options have been assessed against these investment objectives and CSFs, which reflect the 
Council’s aspirations for education, whilst also considering the financial limitations faced by 
the Council. 
 
The options considered are as follows: 

Page 46



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

27 of 41 

 
Option 1: Do Minimum – Deliver projects currently in design stages 
Scope: 

- Ysgol Bro Hyddgen 
- Brynllywarch 
- Ysgol Calon y Dderwen 
- Sennybridge  
- Brecon Primary School 

 
Service solution: 
This investment would deliver a combination of community focused schools using a 
combination of traditional construction approaches and potentially off-site construction, 
meeting the Welsh Government’s targets for Net Zero in operation. 
 
Service delivery: 
The Council in partnership with Welsh Government and other public organisations e.g. 
health 
 
Total Cost: £112,000,000 
 
Option 2:  
As Option 1 with the addition of projects that will deliver the aspirations of the WESP 
Scope: 

- Ysgol Bro Hyddgen 
- Brynllywarch 
- Ysgol Calon y Dderwen 
- Sennybridge  
- Brecon Primary School 
 
- Ysgol Calon Cymru 
- Ysgol Bro Caereinion 

 
Service Solution: 
This investment would deliver a combination of new-build and remodelled community 
focused schools using a combination of traditional construction approaches and potentially 
off-site construction, meeting the Welsh Government’s targets for Net Zero in operation. 
 
Service delivery: 
The Council in partnership with Welsh Government and other public organisations e.g. 
health 
 
Total Cost: £270,000,000 
 
Option 3: Maximum  
Scope: 
As Option 2 plus support for further reorganisation of primary, secondary and post-16 
provision as required, in line with the outcomes of Wave 2 and 3 of the Transforming 
Education Programme  

Page 47



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

28 of 41 

- Ysgol Bro Hyddgen 
- Brynllywarch 
- Ysgol Calon y Dderwen 
- Sennybridge  
- Brecon Primary School 
- Ysgol Calon Cymru 
- Ysgol Bro Caereinion 
- Llanfyllin catchment 
- Other 

 
Service Solution: 
This investment would deliver a combination of new-build and remodelled community 
focused schools using a combination of traditional construction approaches and potentially 
off-site construction, meeting the Welsh Government’s targets for Net Zero in operation. 
 
Service Delivery: 
 
The council in partnership with Welsh Government and other public organisations e.g. 
health  
 
Total Cost: approx.£300,000,000 
 
Preferred Option 
 
Option 3 is the preferred option because it scored the highest overall against the 
investment objectives and critical success factors, particularly because of its strategic fit in 
delivering a Sustainable Powys, the Transforming Education Strategy and the WESP.  It also 
allows a more flexible approach to investment rather than being constrained to specific 
projects. 
 
Option 1 scored the lowest overall due to not maximising the investment objectives, 
however this option is more affordable as it is currently profiled within the capital 
programme.  
 
 

Page 48



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

29 of 41 

5. Commercial Case 
The purpose of the commercial dimension of the Strategic Outline Programme is to 
demonstrate that the preferred option will result in a viable procurement and a well-
structured deal between the public sector and its service providers. 

 
Highlight any differences to the Commercial Case since the latest version of 
your SOP/ Estates strategy was produced. 
 
Please include details of what delivery models you are considering e.g. 
batching or single delivery. 
1000 words maximum 

From July 2015, the Council has been a named employer within Sewscap 2, the South and 
Mid Wales Collaborative Construction Framework for schools and other public buildings. 
Following representation from Powys, this second iteration of the leading construction 
framework was written to include Lots in appropriate value bands for Mid Wales, as it was 
considered that using this approach would offer the economic development benefits of the 
previous Powys & Ceredigion Framework via a heightened framework profile. 
 
The Sewscap frameworks offer a swift route to market which is compliant with EU 
Procurement Directives and the Wales Procurement Policy Statement. They also provide 
opportunities for early contractor involvement and focus on long term relationships. 
 
The Framework ensures competition throughout the whole process with project specific 
competition. A mini-competition for each project between the framework contractors 
awarded to the appropriate Lot, will test price and quality. With quality questions focusing 
on the contractor’s ability to deliver specific project and add value. The frameworks allow for 
a combination of investments, each in any location, to be packaged and let as one 
“project/contract”, thus increasing benefits from the economies of scale. Where NEC target 
price contracts are the chosen form of contract the successful contractor at mini-competition 
is required to tender 75% of the value of the work packages before agreeing the target price 
with the client. Best value is further achieved through the life of the project, through shared 
pain/gain incentives, to deliver the project under the target cost with profit payments linked 
to outcomes measured against a suite of time, cost and quality KPIS. The Client cost manager 
will challenge and verify the target cost. The Framework allows the client to “walk-away” if 
the target price cannot be agreed, incentivising the contractor to construct a competitive 
target price. 
 
Each project is different and may require a different procurement approach. The frameworks 
allow for the use of other industry contracts, for example JCT D&B form and is flexible to 
allow a project to be let as construct only or D&B with design teams appointed by the 
contractor or client. This flexibility will allow the Council to match the delivery model to their 
specific funding and project requirements and also innovate, for example, by progressing the 
development and use of MMC and offsite fabrication. 

6. Financial case 

Page 49



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

30 of 41 

The purpose of the financial dimension of the Strategic Outline Programme is to 
demonstrate the affordability and funding of the preferred option, including the 
support of stakeholders and customers, as required. 

 
 

Highlight any differences to the Financial Case since the latest version of your 
SOP/ Estates strategy was produced.   
 
Please give details of the match funding arrangements for your Programme 
and confirm whether or not it is affordable.   
1000 words maximum 

 
The cost of the projects in the Programme are based on estimations at this stage.  Once 
feasibility projects are undertaken on these schools the project costs will be revised.   
 
The total cost of the projects of Option 3 is £300,000,000.  This is based on estimated costs 
of new build Passivhaus schools.  However, depending on the appropriate solution for any 
specific project, consideration will be given to remodelling options and potentially cheaper 
methods of construction e.g. off-site construction in order to get the best value for money 
from the Investment.  
 
The strategy for life cycle maintenance will be to maintain the current level of spends on 
repairs and maintenance.  As the quality of the schools improves it is proposed that the 
current level of budget is maintained which on current analysis will allow the schools to 
maintain the schools to the new standard.  
 
Each school will be reviewed to determine if the community use has an impact on the 
authority’s partial exemption.  However, it is assumed that there will be no VAT implications 
for the proposals. 
 
The financing for the Programme is as follows: 
 

 Years  
1 to 3 

Years  
4 to 6 

Years  
7 to 9 

Years  
10 to 12 

Total 

Total Budget 109,009,588 89,451,439 72,038,973 29,500,000 300,000,000 

WG Funding 73,931,888 55,413,215 46,925,332 21,475,000 197,745,435 

PCC Funding 35,077,700 34,038,224 25,038,641 6,300,000 100,454,565 

Church Funding 0 0 75,000 1,725,000 1,800,000 

 
Cabinet will consider the appropriate sources to fund the council’s contributions required as 
outlined above. Schemes in years 1 to 3 are already included in the councils capital 
programme with the councils funding being a mix of capital receipts and borrowing.  
 
The funding for the remaining years (years 4 onwards) has yet be be finalised. Any 
substancial increase in borrowing to fund the future schemes will have a detrimental impact 
on the councils revenue budget which is currently under extreme pressure. Further work is 
required to identify affordable funding for the councils contribution but significant 
investment is required to maintain the existing school buildings in a usable condition. 
 

Page 50



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

31 of 41 

The authority would like to explore the option of the Mutual Investment Model, however to 
be prudent the funding is based on the Capital Investment Model. 

7. Management Case 
The purpose of the management dimension of the Strategic Outline Programme is to 
demonstrate that robust arrangements are in place for the delivery, monitoring and 
evaluation of the scheme, including feedback into the organisation’s strategic 
planning cycle.  
 

 
Highlight any differences to the Management Case since the latest version of 
your SOP/ Estates strategy was produced.  
1000 words maximum 

Page 51



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

32 of 41 

 
Programme Governance 
Delivery of the Transforming Education Programme is overseen by the Transforming 
Education Programme Board, which normally meets bi-monthly (approximately every 8 
weeks). The Transforming Education Programme Board is accountable to the Council’s 
Transformation Delivery Board.  
 
The Transforming Education Programme Board is supported by a number of groups that 
support implementation of the Strategy as outlined in the following diagram: 
 

 
 
 
Two Officer Groups have been established to support the Transforming Education Board and 
to oversee implementation of aspects of the Transforming Education Strategy: 
 

- The Transforming Education Officer Group is responsible for the delivery of Strategic 
Aim 1 of the Strategy, ‘We will improve learner entitlement and experience’, and 
oversees strategic school capital projects 

- The WESP Officer Group is responsible for delivery of Strategic Aim 3 of the Strategy, 
‘We will improve access to Welsh-medium provision across all key stages’, and 
oversees implementation of the Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP). 

 

Reporting and Approvals Process 
The reporting process for the Officer Groups / Workstreams / Project Team that have been 
established as part of the Transforming Education Programme governance arrangements will 
be as follows: 
 

Page 52



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

33 of 41 

 
 

• Each workstream / project team / activity will complete a highlight report using the 
Programme template. This will provide an overview of activity during the last period, 
upcoming activity and any risks / issues that need to be escalated. The highlight 
reports for all workstreams / project teams / activities will be considered at the 
officer group meeting. 

• The highlight reports will be used to provide an overview of activity for inclusion in 
the Programme Highlight Report. This will include reporting on activity during the last 
period, upcoming activity and any risks / issues that need to be escalated.  

• The Programme Highlight Report will be considered by the Transforming Education 
Programme Board, which will report progress quarterly to the Transformation 
Delivery Board.  

• Any matters that need to be escalated further will be escalated to the Transformation 
Delivery Board. 

 
In addition to the reporting arrangements outlined above, any documentation / matters 
requiring Programme Board approval will progress through the governance structure as 
outlined above. 
 
Working groups / project teams will meet as often as required within the 8 week cycle to 
ensure that they can meet the requirements for reporting through to the Transforming 
Education Programme Board and ensure effective delivery of activity. 
 
Contract Management 
The Council’s Property Design Service (PDS) is responsible for contract management across 
the Programme working closely with the Schools Service providing the client function.  PDS 
also provide project management for the Programme.  
 
Risk management strategy 
The Transforming Education Programme Board will be responsible for managing and 
mitigating risks to the authority’s overall Transforming Education Programme. In addition, 
any Strategic risks to the overall programme are reported to the Transformation Delivery 
Board, which is the Cabinet and Corporate Leadership Team.  
Risks relating to individual projects within the programme will be identified, monitored and 
mitigated by the Property Design Service’s Project Manager. All risks identified will be 
reported to the Transforming Education Project Board, which meets on a monthly basis. 

Transforming Education 
Programme Board meeting 

(bi-monthly)

Officer Group meeting 

(monthly)

Working Group / Project 
Team meeting 

(monthly or as required)

Page 53



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

34 of 41 

Risks relating to individual projects will be escalated to the Transfoming Education 
Programme Board, as appropriate. 
The council’s approach will be to ensure that risks are: 

• Identified - includes risks being considered that could affect the achievement of the 

project’s objectives, and then described to ensure that there is common understanding 

of these risks 

• Assessed – includes ensuring that each risk can be ranked in terms of estimated 

likelihood, impact and immediacy, and understanding the overall level of risk associated 

with the project 

• Controlled – includes identifying appropriate responses to risks, assigning risk owners, 

and then executing, monitoring and controlling these responses 

 
Benefits realisation strategy 
The Transforming Education Programme Manager i responsible for the monitoring, review 
and delivery of the programme’s benefits.  
 
Gateway review arrangements 
Gateway reviews will be undertaken as appropriate throughout the programme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

35 of 41 

Please provide details of the structures in place to deliver the projects within 
your Programme and contact details of the core team. 
500 words maximum / organogram 
 
The Programme is managed by the Transforming Education Programme Team in partnership 
with the Council’s Property Design Services. 
 
Service Lead for Transforming Education – Marianne.evans@powys.gov.uk 
Strategic Programme Manager Transforming Education – sarah.astley@powys.gov.uk 
Professional Lead Property Design Service – jim.swabey2@powys.gov.uk 
Senior Project Manager – ian.pilcher2@powys.gov.uk 
Capital Accountant – james.chappelle@powys.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 55



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

36 of 41 

 
 
 
Please provide key milestones for the Programme 

 
 Anticipated opening date for pupils 

(September dates unless otherwise 

indicated) 

Brynllywarch Hall School 2025 

Sennybridge CP School 2026 

Ysgol Bro Hyddgen 2027 

Ysgol Calon y Dderwen 2026 

Brecon Primary School 2027 

Ysgol Calon Cymru 2028 Llandrindod Campus 

2029 Builth Wells Campus 

Ysgol Bro Caereinion 2028 

Llanfyllin Catchment 2030 

Other tbc 

  

Page 56



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

37 of 41 

8. Rolling Programme Projects 
Projects should be identified in the nine-year capital programme with:  

• Years 1, 2 and 3 projects expected to reach full business case within the 
3 years.  

• Years 4, 5 and 6 projects being developed and going through statutory 
consultation. 

• Years 7, 8 and 9 being pipeline projects. 
 

 

How many projects do you intend to deliver in each segment of your rolling 
programme? 
 

Years 1-3 6 
Years 4-6 3 
Years 7-9 2 

 

What are they? (Please note that details of the projects should also be 
included in the Project Data Collection spreadsheet and attached).  The 
projects should be ranked in both documents in order of priority. 
 
Years 1-3  
500 words maximum 

 
The projects the Council aims to completed within Years 1-3 are as follows: 
 
Completion of Ysgol Bro Hyddgen new build 
This is the continuation / conclusion of the project which has commenced during Band A, 
for a replacement building for Ysgol Bro Hyddgen, Powys’ first all-age school. Ysgol Bro 
Hyddgen’s secondary campus is currently graded a condition D and the primary campus is 
a condition C.  
 
The project was impacted by the collapse of the Dawnus. The authority then took the 
opportunity to review the scheme to include additional community and leisure facilities, 
however the scheme was subsequently revised again to remove these elements due to 
concerns about affordability.  The designs have now concluded RIBA 3 and will now go 
forward for planning permission.  It is expected that the school will open to pupils in 
2027.  
 
Since the Council’s previous SOP for Band B was prepared, the Council has undertaken the 
statutory process to change the school’s language category from dual stream to Welsh-
medium on a phased basis, starting with Reception in September 2022. The school is 
currently in the processes of transitioning from being a dual stream school to being a 
Welsh-medium school. It is anticipated that the change will be full implemented by 2032. 
 
Ysgol Calon y Dderwen, Newtown 
Following the merger of Hafren Junior School and Ladywell Green Infant School, Ysgol 
Calon y Dderwen opened in 2021 in their existing buildings initially before moving into a 
new 360 place primary school with early years facilities.  The development is part of the 
North Powys Wellbeing Programme and the school will share a campus with an integrated 

Page 57



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

38 of 41 

Health and Wellbeing Hub. The Council is currently consulting on whether to increase the 
size of the new building to include another primary school which is located nearby.  It is 
expected that, subject to the outcome of the consultation, that the new school will open 
in 2026/7. 
 
Brynllywarch Hall School, Kerry 
Brynllywarch is a BESD school which provides education to pupils with specific needs.  The 
school is currently in a very poor condition listed building, and the project has been 
developed to RIBA 2 stage.  A tender exercise is planned to take place for a contractor to 
finalise the design.  It is expected that the school will open to pupils in 2026 
 
Brecon Catchment Review  
 
A review of the Brecon catchment was carried out in 2020. There are currently 5 primary 
providers in the town of Brecon, which includes an infant and junior school, and a number 
of schools which are condition C and D, as well as 2 other primary schools in the 
catchment.  
 
The review identified the need to invest in a replacement building for Sennybridge C.P. 
School due to its very poor condition, and designs have been developed to RIBA 2 stage.  
A tendering exercise is currently underway to appoint a D & B contractor.  It is expected 
that this school will open in 2026. 
 
As part of the Brecon catchment review, another recommendation was to merge 3 
primary schools – Cradoc C.P School, Mount Street Infants and Mount Street Junior 
Schools. Following completion of the statutory process, the new school, now called Ysgol 
Golwg Pen-y-Fan, will open in September 2024, operating from the current buildings, 
before moving to a new school on the site of the old Brecon High School.  It is anticipated 
that the new school building will open to pupils in 2026/7. 
 
  

 
 

Years 4-6 
500 words maximum 

Ysgol Bro Caereinion 
Ysgol Bro Caereinion is the latest of the Council’s all-age schools, having opened in 2022 
following the merger of Ysgol Uwchradd Caereinion and Llanfair Caereinion C.P. School.  
The primary and secondary phases are located in separate buildings and are a distance 
apart.  The school is a condition C for both primary and secondary buildings, and the 
configuration of the school buildings constrain the school’s ability to maximise the 
benefits of an all-age school.  
 
The Council has recently carried out formal consultation on a proposal to change the 
language category of Ysgol Bro Caereinion from dual-stream to Welsh-medium on a 
phased basis.  Following the consultation, Cabinet have considered the feedback received 
and agreed to publish a statutory notice with a final decision scheduled for the Summer 
term 2024.  

Page 58



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

39 of 41 

 
Ysgol Calon Cymru – Llandrindod Wells 
New all-age Welsh-medium school – Builth Wells (dependent on the outcome of the 
statutory school reorganisation process, including consultation) 
 
Ysgol Calon Cymru is a school that was established in 2018, following the reorganisation 
of Llandrindod Wells High School and Builth Wells High School.  The school currently 
operates from the campuses of the two previous schools.  Llandrindod Wells campus is a 
condition C, and Builth campus is a condition B.   
 
Previously, work has focused on remodelling the Design & Technology block on the 
Llandrindod campus, but the scope is now expanding to include whole school 
transformation. 
A Strategic Outline Case has been approved by Cabinet on the 29th September 2020.  The 
preferred way forward is to develop new facilities for a new English-medium secondary 
school for Ysgol Calon Cymru in Llandrindod and to establish a new all-age Welsh-medium 
school in Builth Wells on the current campus, which would need some remodelling to 
bring in early years and primary facilities.  This would address the demand for a 
designated Welsh-medium secondary provider in Mid and South Powys.  
 
A statutory school reorganisation process will need to be completed. 
 
 
Years 7-9 
500 words maximum 
 
Llanfyllin/North Welshpool catchment review 
 
The authority carried out a review of schools in the Llanfyllin/North Welshpool catchment 
area, a process that has already started with the establishment of a new all through 
school in Llanfyllin in September 2020.  There are a number of primary schools in the 
catchment area ranging in size from 7 pupils to 150, and the building stock is generally of 
poor condition.  
 
The review concluded that significant school reorganisation was needed in the area.  The 
school reorganisation process for the closure of Llangedwyn C.i.W Primary School has 
now concluded, with further proposal papers related to other primary schools scheduled 
for Cabinet’s consideration in the next few months.   
 
The review also confirmed the following capital investment required in the catchment: 

• New Church-in-Wales primary school building to replace Llansantffraid C.i.W 
School and Llanfechain C.i.W School buildings 

• New area school to replace 3 schools in the east of the catchment  

• New all-age campus at Ysgol Llanfyllin 
 
A statutory consultation process is required for the area school developments. 
 
Implementation of the outcome of other catchment reviews 

Page 59



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

40 of 41 

 
During the lifetime of this programme, the Council will have completed the organisational 
aspects of its Transforming Education Programme.  The current scheduled plans, known 
as Wave 2, are expected to be completed before 2027 and will include the conclusion of 
current work and a catchment reivew of the Presteigne area.  This will leave the rural 
elements of the Welshpool catchment, Llanidloes catchment and Ysgol Calon Cymru 
primary catchment for Wave 3, which is scheduled for 2027 – 2032 but may be 
accelerated in light of the current economic situation.  
 
Any additional new build or remodelling that emerges as a result of these reviews will be 
considered as potential future pipeline projects.  
 

  

Page 60



OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE 
Strategic Outline Programme – Rolling Programme 

41 of 41 

9. Statement of Approval for Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) 
– Rolling Programme 

 
Please complete as appropriate: 
 
I confirm that the updates in this form have been signed off by either the 
Cabinet of the local authority or the Board of the further education institution: 
 
Local Authority / 
College 

Powys County Council 

Name 
Printed 

Dr Richard Jones 

Name 
Signed 

 

Position in the 
organisation 

Director of Education 

Date 
DD/MM/YYYY 

 

 
If there has not yet been sign off at Cabinet or Board level, please confirm 
when this is anticipated.  Please also confirm at what level the document has 
currently been signed off. 
Cabinet will be considering the SOP at its meeting on 7th May 2024.   

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Sustainable Communities for Learning Strategic Outline Programme
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	1. Purpose
	2. Background
	3. Advice
	4. Resource Implications
	CABINET REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION X
	Strategic Outline Programme - Powys County Council
	1. Rolling Programme Costs
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Strategic Case
	3.1. Strategic Case - Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESP) or Further Education and Apprenticeship Welsh-medium Action Plan
	3.2. Strategic Case - Regeneration and Town Centre First
	3.3. Strategic Case - Active Travel
	3.4. Strategic Case - Sustainability and Decarbonisation
	3.5. Strategic Case - Demand for Places
	3.6. Strategic Case - Community Access
	3.7. Strategic Case - Additional Learning Needs
	4. Economic Case
	5.  Commercial Case
	6. Financial case
	7. Management Case
	8. Rolling Programme Projects
	9. Statement of Approval for Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) – Rolling Programme



